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Public availability 
This report is available in paper form and online.  To obtain a paper copy or copies, please forward your request to our 
office, details provided below.  The online version of this report and previous years’ annual reports can be found at  
http://www.wishlist.org.au/AboutUs/AnnualReportStrategicPlan-143/ 
 
Information systems and recordkeeping compliance 
Information systems, privacy policy and recordkeeping compliance are in accordance with Wishlist’s Financial 
Management Practice Manual that references guidelines of the State of Queensland.  Wishlist complies with the 
Queensland State Archives General Retention and Disposal Schedule for Public Records. 
Further information on Wishlist’s recordkeeping and storage of personal information is available at  
http://www.wishlist.org.au/ContactUs/PrivacyPolicy-123/ 
 
Public Service Values 
Wishlist’s values are consistent with the Queensland Public Service Values ie. Customers First, Ideas Into Action, 
Unleash Potential, Be Courageous, Empower People, as outlined in the following pages. 
 
Information Licensing 
This annual report is licensed by the State of Queensland Sunshine Coast Health Foundation under a Creative 
Commons Attribution (CC BY) 4.0 International licence.   
 

In essence, you are free to copy, communicate and adapt this annual report as long as you 
attribute the work to the State of Queensland Sunshine Coast Health Foundation.  To view a 
copy of this licence, visit http://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0 

 
Attribution: 
Content from this annual report should be attributed as: The State of Queensland Sunshine Coast Health Foundation 
Annual Report 2017-2018. 
 
For further information about this document or to contact Wishlist: 
Lisa Rowe 
Chief Executive Officer 
Wishlist 
PO Box 5340 
SCMC  Qld  4560 

Phone: 07 5202 1777  
Fax:  07 5202 0422 
Email: sc-wishlist@health.qld.gov.au 
Website: wishlist.org.au   
 

 
The Queensland Government is committed to providing accessible services to Queenslanders from all 
culturally and linguistically diverse backgrounds.  If you have difficulty in understanding the annual 
report, you can contact us on (07) 5202 1777 and we will arrange an interpreter to effectively 
communicate the report to you.  

http://www.wishlist.org.au/AboutUs/AnnualReportStrategicPlan-143/
http://www.wishlist.org.au/ContactUs/PrivacyPolicy-123/
http://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0
mailto:sc-wishlist@health.qld.gov.au
http://www.wishlist.org.au/
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4 September 2018 
 
 
The Honourable Steven Miles MP 
Minister for Health and Ambulance Services 
GPO Box 48 
BRISBANE  QLD  4001 
 
 
Dear Minister 
 
I am pleased to submit for presentation to the Parliament the Annual Report 2017-2018 and 
financial statements for the Sunshine Coast Health Foundation. 
 
I certify that this Annual Report complies with: 
 

• the prescribed requirements of the Financial Accountability Act 2009 and the Financial 
and Performance Management Standard 2009, and 
 

• the detailed requirements set out in the Annual report requirements for Queensland 
Government agencies. 
 

A checklist outlining the annual reporting requirements can be found at Appendix 3 of this 
annual report. 
 
Yours sincerely 
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Chairman’s Report 
 
This year Wishlist celebrated 20 years of supporting and enhancing the Sunshine Coast Hospital and Health 
Service (SCHHS). 
 
Wishlist has managed the car park at Nambour Hospital for the past 19 years. Profits cover Wishlist 
operational costs and purchase medical equipment and services, and had funded every cent of our 
$1.4million investment in research and $1.1million in staff education, until this year.   
 
Since the advent of the Sunshine Coast University Hospital (SCUH) this revenue stream has been impacted 
greatly and we continue to work to identify alternative revenue streams to ensure our work continues, in 
the unique model it always has, for years to come. 
 
Our partnership programme offers just that, having directed $148,338 towards our bottom line this year, 
plus $10,665 in commissions from Sunshine Toyota and BOQ Mooloolaba. 
 
These partnerships with local business also provide countless benefits to time-poor health staff through 
onsite opportunities to do business with organisations we trust. We thank Sunshine Toyota, Ausmar Homes 
and Wealthmed for their long-term support of Wishlist as alliance partners. BOQ Mooloolaba, Best 
Western Plus Lake Kawana Hotel and Condon Treasure have helped our work through corporate 
partnerships again this year. We welcome new alliance partner Get Wines Direct and corporate partner 
McDermott Aviation, Infectious Clothing Company and Aussie World to the team. We thank Express Print 
and Mail for saving us almost $20,000 in printing costs, through their corporate partnership over the past 
year.  
 
Our media partners the Sunshine Coast Daily and 92.7Mix FM have once again been pivotal to everything 
we’ve achieved this year. 
 
Mix FM’s Give Me 5 for Kids continues to change lives here on the Coast for countless families. Each year 
the tally grows with this year’s financial reports reflecting the incredible $319,203 income from the 2017 
year. The dedication of the Mix FM team to this appeal each year is nothing short of outstanding. I 
particularly acknowledge past Wishlist Director Caroline Hutchinson’s ongoing dedication to the cause that 
is the best possible local health services for Coast families.  
 
We reviewed our strategic plan this year and are working on an Operations Sustainability Plan to ensure 
future growth and diversification of revenue streams. Our new role as event coordinators of the Sunshine 
Coast Health Institute, and increasing support of our WishlistConnect platform and partnership programme 
all present an opportunity for increased income. 
 
In the year ahead we will work towards meeting the needs of families requiring accommodation near 
SCUH, increasing our research investment and further supporting our regional hospitals, with an increasing 
focus on Gympie. 
 
Our grant funding appears to have dropped significantly this year due to adjustments to grants 
acknowledged in previous years. We now present our grant funding in the year invoices are payed, 
including research, which was previously taken up in the year the grant was committed. 
 
Founding Chairman Mike Kelly stood down as Chairman of Wishlist in December last year. Mike dedicated 
countless hours and effort to an organisation that’s greatly impacted our community and I thank him for 
the vision and commitment that’s made this organisation what it is today. 
 
So too, the many Wishlist Directors who have served voluntarily on the board during that time.  
Undoubtedly, it’s an honour, but with the role comes responsibility and a significant time commitment and 
I sincerely thank my fellow board members for both. 
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Kevin Hegarty stood down this year as Director of Wishlist. In his role as Chief Executive of the SCHHS, 
Kevin’s impact on our work since 2004 cannot be overstated. Kevin ensured Wishlist’s work aligned with 
the strategy of the Health Service in the most effective and appropriate way, and as a vocal and passionate 
supporter of our charity he greatly influenced a culture of support and respect for our charity within the 
Health Service. 
 
I thank the team at Threadpledge for the gift of WishlistConnect. WishlistConnect presents an opportunity 
that all charities in the world seek, an innovative alternative to traditional fundraising methods. In its first 
year this initiative has directed $41,269 to our work. We thank supporters of the platform, our preferred 
suppliers to the Health team, for being part of this initiative. 
 
I sincerely thank every donor, sponsor and event organising committee member for the valued contribution 
this year. Dan Sowden, your efforts as Chair of the Wishlist Spring Carnival committee are greatly 
appreciated by the Board, as is the contribution of all committee members. So too is the continued 
commitment of Darren Venning of Sunshine Toyota to the Sunshine Toyota Exclusive 300 Club Melbourne 
Cup Day event. 
 
In the 15 years my firm has provided legal support to Wishlist, I’ve watched the organisation grow and 
continue to make an indelible mark on the Sunshine Coast landscape.  In the past year as Director, and now 
Chairman, I’ve become increasingly inspired by the level of support dedicated by the Coast community to 
our hospital foundation. 
 
Our 20th year marks a year of reflection, gratitude and transition as we look to make an even greater 
impact on the Coast community over the next twenty years. 
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Our Mission 

To work in partnership 
with the SCHHS and the 
communities it serves to 

keep Queenslanders 
healthy through the 
provision of medical 
equipment, service 

support, education and 
research. 

 

Our Vision 

To be the community’s 
charity of choice to support 

the Sunshine Coast 
Hospital and Health Service 
to provide exceptional care 

and support 
Queenslanders to be 

healthier. 

Our Values 

Wishlist will seek to 
achieve its mission with 

integrity, compassion and 
respect as a locally 

focused, professional and 
innovative Sunshine Coast 

charity. 

About Wishlist 

The Sunshine Coast Health Foundation (Wishlist) is a statutory body incorporated under the Hospital 
Foundations Act 1982 (Qld), replaced on 1 July 2018 with the Hospital Foundations Act 2018.  Located in the 
foyer of the Sunshine Coast University Hospital, the role of Wishlist is to provide fundraising support to 
Nambour, Caloundra, Maleny, Gympie hospitals and the Sunshine Coast University Hospital along with local 
ancillary health services. Wishlist also promotes healthy lifestyle initiatives in our community. 

As a statutory body Wishlist is subject to the provisions of the Financial Accountability Act 2009 and 
subordinate legislation. Wishlist is audited annually by external auditors, this year our auditors are Focus 
PG. In accordance with section 30 A of the Auditor General Act 2009 Wishlist has been approved for 
exemption from audit by the Auditor General for a three year period ending this financial year.  

Wishlist is endorsed by the Australian Taxation Office as a Deductible Gift Recipient (a Health Promotion 
Charity) and an Income Tax Exempt Charity under the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997. Wishlist is also 
endorsed for GST (Goods and Services Tax) concessions under a New Tax System (Goods and Services Tax) 
Act 1999 (Cth) and it is exempted under the Fringe Benefits Tax Assessment Act 1986 (Cth). 

Operating Environment 

Wishlist’s aim is to direct more than $1 million to the needs of the local health service each year, through 
quarterly grants for equipment, support services, research and staff education. 

Wishlist committed $743,012 this year towards medical equipment, services such as the local Clown Doctor 
service, staff education and research. The grant spend presents as $743,012 due to the revoking of a 
$75,000 research grants presented in 2015 and adjustments made to previous research grants. $105,876 
was committed in October 2017 to local research grants. 

The budget and operational plan for the 2018-2019 financial year reflects an increase of eight per cent in 
revenue generated by the car park at Nambour Hospital, due to the start of the Nambour Hospital 
redevelopment.  The budget also reflects growth in the areas of partnership, WishlistConnect and SCHI 
Event Management income. 

We are also focused on providing family accommodation close to SCUH on land owned by Wishlist. 

The challenges and risks faced by our Foundation at present include: 

• Maintaining our unique point of difference as a charity that sees operational costs covered by
enterprise other than fundraising activity and donations. The revenue from the Nambour
Hospital car park has dropped this year to 40 percent of that of the previous year, so we are
working to grow alternative revenue streams to ensure sustainability of the model.
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• A highly competitive charity environment on the Sunshine Coast and the potential for donor 
and charity event fatigue. 

 
• Developing a strategy to ensure Wishlist’s research investment achieves the maximum public 

benefit. This year saw Wishlist direct fundraising proceeds to research and education for the 
first time, as opposed to carpark revenue, and harness community excitement about the 
importance of research at our new tertiary hospital. We must develop a strategy to build on 
that excitement and generate ongoing support from the corporate sector for our research 
investment each year. 
 

• Ensuring the sustainability of Reed House, the accommodation centre supporting Nambour 
Hospital and SCUH. 

 
Machinery of Government Changes 
 
There has been no machinery of government changes which have affected Wishlist during the reporting 
period. 
 
Agency Objectives and Performance Indicators 
 
The Wishlist Strategic Plan positively contributes to the following Queensland Government Objectives: 
 

• Supporting Queenslanders to be healthy. 
• Give all our children a great start. 
• Creating jobs and a diverse economy. 
• Be a responsive government. 

 
Our vision to be the community’s charity of choice has been achieved to support the SCHHS to keep 
Queenslanders healthy with access to the best medical services, equipment, research and advice. We have 
been working in partnership with the SCHHS and the Sunshine Coast community to promote healthy living 
and to empower and revitalise frontline staff and infrastructure by enhancing services through the 
provision of medical equipment, service support, education and research in line with local priorities. 
 
Hospital foundations across the state play an important role in enabling staff and patients to identify 
improvements in local health care.   
 
Wishlist directed a total of $743,012 to the funding of medical equipment, research, education and service 
support initiatives this year. A rigorous funding round process sees applications submitted by frontline 
health staff for support needed to enhance patient care in their areas. A record number of applications for 
funding were also received by Wishlist this year as we launched our new grant application process on 
Smarty Grants.  
 
Additionally, Wishlist directs funds each year to maintaining our 20-room accommodation facility Reed 
House, providing affordable accommodation to Queenslanders relying on the services of Nambour Hospital 
or the Sunshine Coast University Hospital to support loved ones during a time of crisis. Wishlist took over 
the management of the facility in May 2018 from the Australian Red Cross to ensure comfortable and 
affordable accommodation continues to be available to those in need.  
 
Wishlist Coffee House at Gympie Hospital celebrated five years in operation this year and has made a total 
net profit of more than $276,437 since inception. Every dollar will be directed towards essential equipment 
to enhance the service at Gympie Hospital, and towards helping patients to stay in their home town for 
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treatment. This year gross revenue from Wishlist Coffee House increased from $234,562 to $243,659, an 
increase of 3.73 percent. 
 
In May this year Wishlist celebrated the WishlistConnect’s first anniversary. The digital member benefits 
platform was developed to connect the Sunshine Coast’s top businesses with the health service community 
and beyond to support Wishlist. The platform has made a total net profit of $41,269 since inception. 
 
Delivering quality frontline services: 
 

• Supporting Queenslanders to be healthy 
 
As part of our ongoing commitment to the support of local health services, $743,012 was spent on local 
health needs in four areas; equipment, service support, education and research. 
 
Total equipment funded this year totalled $125,733, the major equipment purchases included: 
 

Major Equipment Items Purchased Cost 
Two paediatric ventilators – Nambour Hospital & SCUH $82,000 
C-MAC Laryngoscope – Gympie Hospital $30,679 
Neuro-perfusion package - Gympie Hospital $30,000 
Exercise Physiology Service – SCUH Cancer Centre $22,727 
Gympie Hospital staff quarters upgrade $8924 
Cough Assist E70 – SCUH $9135 

Note: the EUS Radial Scope committed to last year was deemed ‘surplus need’ and therefore $72,874 was 
reversed this year. 
 
Total service support this year was $680,146 the major areas of service support funded included: 
 

Service Support Programs Supported Cost 
Child Development Service $109,713 
Cath Lab Pro Pilot Program $30,000 
Juvenile Diabetes Camps $101,270 
Clown Doctor Visits $113,568 
Music Therapy – Dove Palliative Care  $9944 
Yoga Therapy $13,500 
Gympie Hospital DEM Gazebo $30,000 
Interactive Play Equipment, artworks & theming in Paediatric areas - SCUH $245,458 

 
Research Funding: 
 
Research projects funded by Wishlist help pave the way for innovation that serves to create a more 
efficient and productive health service. This year’s research spend totalled $129,017, but with reversals to 
previous research grant funding of $259,880 the financials present a balance of -$130,863. 
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Description  Approved 
A randomised trial of the benefit and cost-effectiveness of Cardiac Resynchronization 
Therapy optimisation in heart failure. 

$46,050 

Thromboelastrography in obstetrics. $20,000 
The ‘All of Us’ study – Operational staff’s experience of performing cardiopulmonary 
resuscitation in acute care. 

$10,000 

Monitoring Group B streptococcus causing life-threatening invasive disease in newborns 
and the elderly on the Sunshine Coast. 

$10,000 

Assessment of the concentration of citrate during haemofiltration. $9,000 
Diet and Chronic Kidney Disease. $5,826 
Barriers and facilitators to care close to or at home for dying neonates. $5,000 

Note: of the above committed research grants, only $37,938 has been spent in this financial year. The 
remaining $67,938 will be spent in the following financial years as the milestones as per the grant 
conditions are met.  
 
Health Promotion: 
 
As a health promotion charity, a large part of the Wishlist focus is to keep our community well and out of 
the hospital system. 
 
Waterlife 2017, Sunshine Coast University Hospital Run Club, Nambour Hospital All Staff Sports Club, 
Wishlist Fun Run 2018 and fundraising events such as charity golf days all promote the benefits to keeping 
active as a key message to supporters. 
 
Waterlife is a unique event in attracting both novice and experienced participants to get outdoors and 
enjoy a healthy day of physical activity on the water. The event encouraged participants to work together in 
a team to achieve results. The all-inclusive event raised $22,428 split between Wishlist, endED and No 
Limits Adaptive Paddling. With these funds and general donations Wishlist funded $25,000 towards 
Queensland’s first integrated Exercise Physiology Service for cancer patients, located at SCUH. Waterlife 
2017 was a highly publicised event which featured extensive media coverage and promoted healthy living 
in the wider community.   
 
The SCUH Run Club and Nambour All Staff Sports Club promotes an active lifestyle and encourages a 
healthy work and lifestyle balance for SCHHS staff. This internal program has been operating for 18 months 
and now boasts over 120 members. The program was supported by Wishlist through sponsorship, 
marketing, promotion and staff communications and sees members of staff running or walking as a group 
twice a week near SCUH and Nambour Hospital campuses, as well as a touch football team at Nambour.  
 
This year marked the first Wishlist Fun Run which occurred on April 22 at Lake Kawana. The event of more 
than 400 people raised $24,832 for Wishlist and encouraged the public and staff to engage in a community 
health promotion event on a Sunday morning.  
 
Our team attends meetings with the SCHHS Health4Life working group whose aim is to develop a holistic 
wellness program for over 7500 staff on the Sunshine Coast. By building social capacity and offering staff 
opportunities to take part in healthy activities, the Health4Life program recognises that good health and 
wellbeing covers many dimensions including physical, social, work, mental, family, spiritual, and financial, 
and our activities within this group reflect this diversity.   
 

• Give all our children a great start:  
 
Child Development Service 
Wishlist has continued to fund the Child Development Service (CDS) to a total of $1.15 million since 2015. 
This year, Wishlist’s financial commitment was completed with the remaining $109,713. The CDS has 
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helped thousands of young patients with developmental and behavioural issues through a multi-
disciplinary service. The nationally-accredited program this year expanded their focus on helping patients 
will Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder and autism. Wishlist has provided funding over three years towards 
the CDS to support vulnerable and disadvantaged children in our community.  
 
Juvenile diabetes medical equipment  
Wishlist continues to support the Coast’s public juvenile diabetes clinics through the purchase of several 
Continuous Blood Glucose Monitors for patients to trial. $2600 was spent on Dexcom monitor to loan to 
families for real-time continuous blood glucose monitoring. These monitors were loaned across the SCHHS. 
Another two monitors remain on our wish list.   
 
Diversional therapy for children  
Wishlist purchased $4020 worth of diversional therapy resources on mobile workspace carts to aid staff at 
the Sunshine Coast University Hospital (SCUH) to distract young patients in the Operating Suite. The 
devices, known as Neo-Flex Wide View WorkSpace Carts have helped hundreds of children facing surgery 
or painful procedures. An additional $3976 was spent on multi-model technology devices to assist medical 
teams, paediatric consumers and families in the Paediatric Critical Care Unit and Paediatric Emergency 
Medicine Service during procedures. The innovative program reduced the need for sedatives and reduced 
negative experiences of healthcare.  
 

• Creating jobs and a diverse economy 
 
Child Development Service 
Wishlist’s support of the Child Development Service included funding an additional 1.8 FTE staff for three 
years.  
 
Music and Yoga Therapy 
Through community donations, Wishlist has been able to fund the provision of music therapy and yoga 
therapy staff to Dove Palliative Cate at Caloundra Hospital and to our Children’s Ward. This financial year, 
Wishlist has funded 10 hours per week for music therapy and two hours per week for yoga therapy.  
 
Sunshine Coast Clown Doctors 
Celebrating their first year on the Sunshine Coast this year, the Sunshine Coast Clown Doctor service sees 
two ‘doctors’ bring giggles and smiles to our youngest patients at the Sunshine Coast University Hospital 
two days each week. This $109,845 per annum program was a first on the Sunshine Coast thanks to event 
fundraising and community donations to Wishlist.  
 

• Be a responsive government:  
 

Frontline services 
Wishlist improves the efficiencies and skills of SCHHS frontline staff through Wishlist Staff Scholarships and 
Wishlist Project Funding grants. We also engage with TAFE Queensland Sunshine Coast students through 
business and Wishlist event opportunities, as well as university students by way of Wishlist internships. 
 
Our partnership with SCHHS volunteers ensures our hospital network is easy to use as volunteers help 
patients daily find their way to appointments on various wards. 
 
Reed House 
Our accommodation facility, Reed House, offers easier access to SCUH and Nambour Hospital for remote 
and regional patients, along with a shuttle service operated by Wishlist.     
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Fabio the Frog 
Our dedicated team of Wishlist volunteers has seen the continuation of the Wishlist-funded Fabio the Frog 
program which allows paediatric patients to share their hospital experience. This collaboration improves 
delivery of care for patients and their families by providing feedback to medical teams and the SCHHS. 

Summary of Financial Performance 

Budget  This Year  Last Year Notes 

Operating Income 

Car Park Revenue $  481,623  $ 458,528 $ 1,137,051 

Less: Car Park Expenses $  133,398  $ 120,707 $    186,545 

Despite budgeting for a decrease in car 
parking this financial year due to 
services at Nambour Hospital being 
relocated to SCUH in March 2017, the 
decrease in car parking income was 
$23,095 under budgeted amount. 
Decrease mostly due to the lower 
variable expenses with the relocation 
of services from Nambour Hospital to 
SCUH. 

Net Profit from Car Park $    348,225 $   337,821 $    950,506 

WishlistConnect 
Revenue 

$    98,650 $    80,986 $                0 Under budget due to ambitious first 
year projections 

Less: WishlistConnect 
Expenses 

$    51,036 $    39,717 $            0 Under budget due to decreased video 
production 

Net Profit from 
WishlistConnect 

$     47,614 $     41,269 $                 0 

HodgesJas
Stamp
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SCHI Event Management 
Revenue 

$    61,200 $    73,580 $                   0 Over budget due to more activity than 
anticipated 

Less: SCHI Event 
Management Expenses 

$    51,000 $     60,229 $          0   Over budget due to more activity than 
anticipated 

Net Profit from SCHI 
Event Management 

$    10,200 $     13,351 $                   0     

Reed House Revenue $    0 $     16,614 $                    0 No budget allocation due to the 
decision being made during the 
financial year to take over 
management of Reed House 

Less: Reed House 
Expenses 

$           0 $     12,848 $                   0 As above 

Net Profit from Reed 
House 

$        0 $         3766 $                 0 

Sponsorships/Alliances $  153,750    $   148,338 $          98,750 Increase due to a concerted effort to 
diversify revenue streams. Was 
included below with fundraising 
income in prior years 

Less Sponsor/Alliance 
Event Attendance 

$    14,160 $     10,720 $          20,724 Decrease due to one-off events last 
year – SCUH Gala Ball and Wealthmed 
Dinner. Also no sponsor attendance at 
Waterlife this year 

Net Profit from 
Sponsorships/Alliances 

$  139,590 $   137,618 $          78,026 

Other Income  $   43,302 $      49,880 $          55,509 Interest income decreased $22,960. 
Over budget due to increase in vending 
machine commissions   

Total Operating Income  $ 588,931  $   583,705 $    1,084,041 

Less: Employment Exp  $ 601,824  $   616,291  $      551,083 Additional positions: Part-time 
Marketing Co-ordinator 
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WishlistConnect 

   Dep'n & Amort  $ 110,000 $        57,494  $     123,186  Decrease due to increase of value of 
Reed House per valuation therefore no 
depreciation recorded on buildings. 

       Other Operating Exp  $ 160,035  $     157,662  $     218,187  Due to the forecast decrease in car 
park profit, concerted efforts were 
made to reduce operating expenses. 

Total Operating Exp  $ 871,859 $     831,447  $     892,456 

Operating Profit/(Loss) -$ 282,928  -$   247,742  $     191,585 

Fundraising Income  $1,500,104 $  1,896,084 $    1,668,262 Over budget due to $330,000 grant 
received from Children’s Hospital 
Foundation Queensland and three new 
fundraising events this year – Teddy 
Bears’ Picnic, Aussie World Fun Day 
and Fun Run. 

Less: Fundraising 
Expenses 

 $ 441,895 $     483,819  $     712,473  Event expenses decreased on last year 
due to the one-off event last year 
(SCUH Gala Ball) and the restructure of 
the Row for Cancer event – now known 
as Waterlife. Over budget due to the 
additional events – Teddy Bears’ Picnic, 
Aussie World Fun Day and Fun Run 

Net Profit/(Loss)  $1,058,209  $  1,412,265  $     955,789 

Total Profit  $775,281  $  1,164,523  $  1,147,374 

Grant Distribution  $1,094,554  $     743,012  $  1,484,987  Grant distribution figure was low this 
year due to reversals of grants 
recognised in prior years that were 
cancelled or unspent as well as a 
change in accounting policy regarding 
the recognition of timing of grant 
expenditure 

Surplus/(Deficit)  -$319,273 $      421,511  -$     337,613 
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Summary of Financial Performance (continued) 
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Strategic Workforce Planning and Performance 

Organisational structure  

Our Board 

Name 
Type of Appointment 
Date of Appointment 

Reason for Appointment 

Peter Boyce 
Chair 

23/2/17 – 30/09/18 

Peter Boyce was appointed as the Chair of Wishlist in October 2017, succeeding 
founding member Mike Kelly. Peter is renowned in the Sunshine Coast community for 
his tireless dedication to support local causes. With more than 40 years’ experience 
as a Solicitor, Peter has practised in all areas of litigation and has special interests in 
criminal law, civil and commercial litigation, retirement village matters, sports law, 
resumption of land and compensation claims.  Peter provides invaluable advice to the 
Board as a determined advocate for the needs of the Sunshine Coast Hospital and 
Health Service. 

Kym Chomley  
Deputy Chair 

26/07/07 - 30/09/18 

Kym is Director of Quality Lifestyle Alliance Inc and has been Deputy Chair since 
2009, bringing 25 years’ experience in Accounting, Human Resource and Business 
Management. As a management executive with broad experience in all aspects of 
financial management, accounting, IT, training and human resources and experience 
in a variety of industries including professional services, property development and 
real estate, Kym provides invaluable advice to the Board through her role on the 
FARM Committee. 
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Cosmo Schuh 
Board Member 

23/11/12 – currently  
the appointed Sunshine 
Coast Hospital and Health 
Board Representative 

Having worked as a Public Accountant in the Gympie and South East Queensland area 
for more than 35 years, Cosmo brings audit, accounting and financial expertise to the 
team. Cosmo has been involved extensively in property development and 
syndication, financial management, estate planning and strategic management for 
small to medium business and his strong business presence and knowledge of the 
Gympie region is helping Wishlist establish a greater presence and network of 
corporate supporters in Gympie.  Cos is a member of the Finance, Audit & Risk 
Management Committee. 

Graham Wilkinson 
Board Member 

07/04/06 – 30/09/19 

As the Health Service’s Executive Director of Nursing and Midwifery Services, Graham 
has over 30 years’ experience working with Queensland Health and brings his high 
level of knowledge and experience with Nursing and Midwifery Services and Health 
Management.  He has a diverse Résumé of Appointments in numerous Clinical and 
Management positions.  Graham's experience as Adjunct Professor of University of 
the Sunshine Coast and previous Adjunct Associate Professor appointments at the 
Faculty of Nursing and Health at Griffith University and University of Queensland has 
helped Wishlist progress its support for Education, Training and Research.  Graham is 
a member of the Project and Funding Management Committee 

John Williams 
Board Member 

19/08/16 - 30/09/18 

John is the General Manager at Sunshine Coast Broadcasters Pty Ltd and is 
responsible for all facets of the broadcasting unit, including content, sales, technical, 
creative, digital and marketing. Engaging with a large number of community groups 
across the Sunshine Coast, John has a wealth of knowledge to assist in boosting 
the profile of Wishlist as a charitable organisation. Starting his career in media in 
1971, John has headed several successful radio entities, including 4BC 
Brisbane, 2UW Sydney, Mix FM Sydney and held a director’s position with the 
Australian Radio Network. John is a board member of Wishlist and a member of the 
Wishlist Marketing Committee. 

Trudy Fitzgerald 
Board Member 

19/08/16 - 30/09/18 

Trudy is an accomplished sales and marketing executive with over 23 years of diverse 
experience in the medical industry. Having started as a registered nurse her drive and 
tenaciousness escalated her career to become a very successful and respected 
business leader today within the medical industry. The majority of Trudy’s career has 
been with a global medical device NASDAQ listed company EVVV (ev3), where she 
held various senior executive roles such as International Marketing Director and Asia 
Pacific Sales and Marketing Director. In 2013 Trudy started Cortex Consulting, a 
specialised and trusted medical and healthcare consulting company. Drawing from 
her expertise and industry knowledge, Trudy’s is well placed to provide regular advice 
to Wishlist’s Board and CEO. 

Greg Fahey 
Board Member 
(Resigning 30/09/18) 

22/01/01 - 18/09/19 

As a former Maroochy councillor and mayoral contender, Greg Fahey’s political 
experience and contacts has him well-placed to help raise the profile of Wishlist in 
the community. Greg is also well known in local sporting circles including Sunshine 
Coast Rugby and as a delegate of the Australian Formula Ford Association. Greg is an 
active member of many volunteer organisations and he represents Wishlist actively at 
community and business events. Greg is a member of the Project & Funding 
Management Committee. 

Lisa Aitken  
Board Member 
(Resigning 30/09/18) 

10/06/10 – 30/09/19 

As Managing Partner of Aitken Legal, Lisa’s experience in general employment law, 
workplace health and safety and discrimination along with her wealth of experience 
gained from working for more than 15 years in human resources and industrial 
relations law means she is perfectly placed to advise Wishlist in the right course of 
action in complex situations. Lisa is also known for her support of various local 
charities and tireless efforts within the community.  Lisa is a member of the 
Marketing Committee.     

Jenny Madden  
Board Member 

23/11/12 - 30/09/19 

Jenny has more than 20 years' experience in the government and community sectors 
in the areas of education, health promotion and research. With a significant history in 
community engagement particularly in the areas of drug prevention and public 
health, Jenny has extensive experience in a range of community services within 
Australia and SE Asia. In addition to her community development experience, Jenny 
has undertaken major research projects in the areas of drug prevention and addictive 
behaviours and is well placed to provide regular informal advice to Wishlist’s Board 
and CEO, particularly in the areas of research and grant writing.  Jenny is a member of 
the Project & Funding Management Committee.   
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During the year six (6) meetings of the Board were held. 

Name No. Attended Name No. Attended 
Peter Boyce 6 Jenny Madden 6 
Kym Chomley 6 Cosmo Schuh 5 
Trudy Fitzgerald 3 Lisa Aitken 5 
Greg Fahey 1 John Williams 4 
Graham Wilkinson 5 
Mike Kelly 1 

The Role of the Board 

Wishlist is governed by a voluntary Board which is responsible for the overall strategic direction of the 
organisation, overseeing its operations and establishing policies and procedures. The Board and 
management have been entrusted with the responsibility of ensuring that monies provided by donors, 
sponsors and the general public are efficiently managed. Board members serve voluntarily and without 
remuneration.  Directors are appointed by the Governor in Council.   

The role of the Board includes: 

• Maintaining high levels of accountability to our stakeholders and external regulators.
• Monitoring the performance of the CEO.
• Raising awareness of the organisation within the community.
• Ensuring compliance with statutory, financial, social and corporate governance responsibilities.
• Providing strategic direction and developing, assessing and approving strategies, policies, plans and

budgets.
• Assessing and approving applications for equipment, education, research and service support as

part of our $1 million annual funding commitment to local Queensland Health services.
• Monitoring risk and ensuring the presence of adequate risk management controls and reporting

procedures.
• Ensuring Wishlist acts legally, ethically, responsibly and openly.

The Board delegates responsibility for implementing strategies approved by the Board and day-to-day 
management to the CEO, Lisa Rowe, who in turn reports to the Board at committee meetings and bi-
monthly board meetings. The CEO is responsible for managing the operational aspects of Wishlist and 
ensuring compliance with relevant legislation. 

Our Team – Workforce Profile 

Wishlist is an equal opportunity employer offering a workplace free from harassment and discrimination.  

Strategic workforce planning is undertaken annually as the budget for the ensuing financial year is 
generated. Wishlist is committed to ensuring that fair and effective procedures and processes are 
implemented and adhered to for selection and employment of people to meet organisational needs. This 
includes defining in advance the roles and work required. A written position description and relevant KPI’s 
(if applicable) are prepared prior to advertising, interviewing and the selection process.   

By promoting a healthy work-life blend and offering flexible work arrangements for employees, Wishlist 
have been able to achieve 75 percent retention rate for all positions this year and has seen a significant 
boost in productivity. 
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Assisting the CEO is a team of dedicated staff equating to 9.5 FTE, consisting: 
• a full-time Administration Officer, Anita Rechenberg
• a full-time Executive Assistant, Tracey Sobey
• a full-time Philanthropy Manager, Hans de Koning
• a part-time Fundraising & Events Manager, Lisa Wilson
• a full-time Fundraising & Events Assistant, Ashlea Heisner
• a part-time Communications Officer, Bianca Keegan
• a part-time Marketing Co-ordinator, Carmen Spencer
• a part-time Marketing Co-ordinator, Mikaela Holland (WishlistConnect)
• a part-time Financial Controller, Megan Fawdon
• a full-time Kiosk Manager, Richard Ward (located at Gympie Hospital); and
• a casual Kiosk Manager, Leah Pearson (located at Gympie Hospital)

Early Retirement, Redundancy and Retrenchment 

There were no redundancy, early retirement or retrenchment packages paid during the period. 

Public Sector Ethics Act 1994 – Code of Conduct 

Wishlist’s Directors, Volunteers and Employees Code of Conduct was endorsed by the Board at the August 
2014 Board Meeting, and approved by the by the Minister for Health on 20 October 2014. In accordance 
with Section 20 of the PSEA all staff, volunteers and Directors will be given a copy of the Code, and advised 
of current Wishlist procedures that align with the PSEA and Code of Conduct for the Queensland Public 
Service. Employment contracts and performance agreements will be congruent with the ethics priorities 
outlined in the Code and PSEA. 

Our Committees 

Finance, Audit & Risk Management (FARM) Committee 

The purpose of the Finance, Audit and Risk Management Committee is to oversee the financial aspects of 
Wishlist’s operations, ensure compliance with all legislative, legal and audit requirements and manage risk 
associated with Wishlist’s operations. Meetings are held monthly from February to December each year. 

The committee adheres to the Hospitals Foundation Act 1982, the Financial Accountability Act 2009, the 
Income Tax Assessment Act 1997 and observed the Audit Committee Guidelines. 

Scope of the Committee: 
To contribute to the management and delivery of Wishlist’s operations and ensure compliance with all 
legislative, legal and audit requirements the Finance, Audit and Risk Management Committee undertakes 
the following:  

• Develop Wishlist’s strategic plan in accordance with legislative requirements
• Ensure Wishlist’s operations are monitored and measured against targets outlined in Wishlist’s

strategic plan
• Establish annual budget and operational plan
• Risk assessment and management
• Identify succession plan for board and team
• Annually review all committees “Terms of Reference” for endorsement by the appropriate Chair

and ensuring board operations continuously improve by monitoring the effective operation of the
identified committees.
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Membership 
Membership is determined by the Wishlist Board and consists of Chairman Peter Boyce, Cos Schuh 
(Director), Kym Chomley (Director), Megan Fawdon (Financial Controller) and Lisa Rowe (CEO). 

Project and Funding Management Committee 

The purpose of the Project and Funding Management Committee is to provide strategic advice and 
recommendations to Wishlist on the allocation of Wishlist’s annual funding commitment to the needs of 
the Sunshine Coast Hospital and Health Service (SCHHS). The Project and Funding Management Committee 
also monitors and guides major projects undertaken by Wishlist. The committee adheres to the strategic 
and operational plan of Wishlist, and the funding round process which takes into account the priority needs 
of the SCHHS.  Meetings are held monthly from February to December each year. 

Scope of the Committee 
To contribute to the management and delivery of Wishlist’s annual funding commitment the Project and 
Funding Management Committee undertakes the following:  

• Establish criteria with the SCHHS in relation to Wishlist’s scope of funding
• Determine Wishlist’s funding commitment through quarterly funding rounds.
• Provide support with grant identification and stakeholder relationships eg. USC and research
• Manage funding process through to the applicant’s final report stage.
• Manage Wishlist’s major projects
• Make recommendation to Board on Staff Scholarship and Research Funding Rounds.

Membership 
Membership is determined by the Wishlist Board and consists of Chair Greg Fahey (Director), Graham 
Wilkinson (Director), Jenny Madden (Director), Executive Director of Clinical Services (SCHHS) and Lisa 
Rowe (CEO). 

Marketing and Fundraising Committee 

The purpose of the Marketing and Fundraising Committee is to provide strategic advice and 
recommendations that serve to increase the profile of Wishlist’s activities and develop collaborative 
partnerships with key stakeholders. The committee adheres to the strategic and operational plan of 
Wishlist. Meetings are held monthly from February to December each year. 

Scope of the Committee 
To contribute to the management and delivery of Wishlist’s fundraising and marketing strategy the 
Marketing and Fundraising Committee undertakes the following: 

 Developing and overseeing the fundraising strategy of Wishlist 
 Developing and overseeing the marketing strategy of Wishlist which includes promotion of events 

and Wishlist’s annual funding commitment  
 Develop and increase the profile of the Wishlist brand 
 Marketing of Wishlist’s projects 
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Membership 
Membership is determined by the Wishlist Board and consists of Chair John Williams, Lisa Aitken (Director), 
Trudy Fitzgerald (Director), Hans de Koning (Philanthropy Manager), Lisa Wilson (Events Manager), Carmen 
Spencer (Marketing Coordinator) and Lisa Rowe (Wishlist CEO).  
 
Research Committee 
 
The Health Service’s Research Committee, comprised of representatives of Sunshine Coast Hospital and 
Health Service and academic representatives from tertiary partners, convenes and assesses the applications 
against the criteria for each category and the availability of grant funds. Recommendations made by the 
committee are sent to the Wishlist Project and Funding Management Committee for Board approval once a 
year.   
 
Internal Audit 
 
A one-off transaction review was undertaken on November 2017, requested by Wishlist CEO Lisa Rowe and 
the FARM committee.  
 
The review revealed 19 low risk issues which have all been addressed. 
 
External Scrutiny 
 
There have been no external agency reviews or audits conducted on Wishlist during the reporting period, 
apart from the financial audit which is disclosed in the attached statutory accounts for 2017-2018. 
 
Open Data  
 
No expenditure on consultancy, overseas travel and implementation of the Queensland Language Services 
Policy was incurred during 2017-2018. Annual reporting requirements for expenditure on consultancies, 
overseas travel and government bodies will be published on the Queensland Government Open Data 
website, available via: www.data.qld.gov.au. 
 
Events: 
 

• Mix FM’s Give Me 5 for Kids – Each year in June the Sunshine Coast community digs deep to 
support 92.7 Mix FM’s Give Me 5 for Kids (GM5FK) radio appeal. A donation of $319,203 was made 
in 2017 which purchased two paediatric ventilators for the Emergency Departments at the 
Sunshine Coast University Hospital (SCUH) and Nambour Hospital, plus the finishing touches to 
paediatric spaces at SCUH including a world-first bespoke interactive digital wall and decals through 
SCUH. 

 
• Waterlife – The second Waterlife collaborative charity event in aid of Wishlist, EndED and No Limits 

Adaptive Paddling raised $11,219 for Wishlist. Wishlist’s share of the proceeds plus donations 
helped purchase $25,000 worth of equipment for Queensland’s first integrated Exercise Physiology 
Service for cancer patients. The event was attended by more than 300 people.    

 
• Wishlist Jazz & Wine Festival – The second Wishlist Jazz & Wine Festival was held in Gympie in 

August 2017 raising $35,693 for a neuro-perfusion package for Gympie Hospital to help better 
diagnose stroke patients. The event was attended by more than 250 people.    
 

• Wishlist Spring Carnival - This annual event held in September 2017 raised $143,106 for innovative 
research projects. More than 500 guests attended Novotel Twin Waters for an afternoon of 
fundraising, with emcees Natalie Barr and Mark Beretta. 
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• Wishlist Teddy Bears’ Picnic – This inaugural community event was held on October 29, 2017, at 
Cotton Tree Park to raise funds for a Dementia Garden at Nambour Hospital’s Acute and 
Restorative Care Unit. The event raised $27,221.  

 
• Sunshine Toyota Exclusive 300 Club Melbourne Cup Charity Luncheon – More than 300 

Melbourne Cup revellers – including sporting celebrities and Sunshine Coast business identities 
converged on the Wishlist marquee at the Sunshine Coast Turf Club for Sunshine Toyota’s Exclusive 
300 Club Melbourne Cup Luncheon. $25,569 was raised for health research projects on the 
Sunshine Coast.  
 

• Festive Fair – Thanks to a new Corporate Partnership with iconic Sunshine Coast theme park Aussie 
World, Wishlist was able to promote an exclusive evening at the park to Sunshine Coast Hospital 
and Health Service employees and Wishlist supporters. This morale-lifting event was well attended 
by more than 600 people – most being health staff. The event raised $12,215.  

 
• Christmas Wrapping – More than 150 Sunshine Coast volunteers turned out to ‘wrap for Wishlist’ 

at a gift-wrapping stall at Sunshine Plaza in December 2017. The fundraising opportunity raised 
$14,281 for Wishlist which was directed to the Queensland-first Cath Lab Pro pilot program based 
at SCUH.  

 
• Wishlist Fun Run – Celebrating the 20 year anniversary of Wishlist, an all-inclusive community 

event was held at Birtinya featuring a 10km and 5km running course. The event was also a health 
promotion activity and raised $24,832 on April 22, 2018.   

 
Grants Received 
 
Grants received this financial year totalled $396,550. The grants included this financial year are listed 
below: 
 

• Children’s Hospital Foundation Queensland grant to progress paediatric projects - $330,000 
• Advancing Small Business Queensland Digital Marketing grant for WishlistConnect - $4415 
• Gambling Community Benefit Fund to purchase the Cough Assist E70 for the SCHHS Respiratory 

team - $9135 
• Maroochy RSL Grant in support of the Teddy Bears’ Picnic 2017 - $5000 
• Maroochy RSL Grant in support of the Fun Run 2018 - $5,000 
• Queensland Community Foundation to fund the Older Persons Mental Health Sensory Garden – 

$3,000  
• Commonwealth Bank Australia grant for the local Clown Doctor service - $30,000 
• Commonwealth Bank Australia grant for Camp Diabetes - $10,000  

 
Volunteers  
 
Wishlist has prioritised volunteer engagement this year to involve community members in the work of our 
health foundation. We have recruited several regular volunteers to help with data entry and reception 
work on a weekly basis, as well as our successful Fabio the Frog program run entirely by volunteers twice a 
week in the Children and Adolescent Department at SCUH.  
 
Manager of Wishlist Coffee House, Richard Ward, works with a dedicated team of volunteers to ensure this 
enterprise offers more than quality refreshments to visitors and staff.  This enterprise raised $63,608 this 
year alone.  His team has delivered a range of “extras’ to the Gympie Hospital over the past five years and 
will continue to tick items off the hospital wish list for Gympie families.   
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SCUH and Nambour Hospital’s volunteer team known as “The Sunshiners” are the friendly faces at the 
hospital entry to direct people around hospital corridors and distribute trauma teddies to the wards. 
Wishlist supports this group by funding an annual Christmas function and the uniforms worn by volunteers 
across the SCHHS.   
 
Our volunteers include all of Wishlist’s board members and those on the organising committees 
responsible for our largest events. They are all business people committed to making a difference in their 
local communities. Wishlist would like to acknowledge the hardworking volunteers who run the Wishlist 
Coffee House and have helped it become such a profitable fundraiser for Gympie Hospital.  
 
We also thank the Australian Red Cross and Wishlist Reed House volunteers who ensure our impressive 
accommodation facility, Reed House, provides the best possible home-away-from-home to patients of 
Nambour Hospital and SCUH, and their families. 
 
Our gratitude also extends to event volunteers and the many dedicated community groups who volunteer 
hours of their time to knit, sew and create the loveable trauma teddies, blankets and newborn baby sets for 
the emergency and children’s wards at the hospital.  
 
Glossary 
 
CDS Child Development Service 
CEO Chief Executive Officer 
FARM Finance, Audit & Risk Management Committee  
GM54K Mix FM’s Give Me 5 for Kids 
KPI Key Performance Indicator   
M&F Marketing and Fundraising Committee 
P&FM Project & Funding Management Committee 
PSEA Public Service Ethics Act 
SC-Koping Sunshine Coast Koping Network 
SCHHS Sunshine Coast Hospital & Health Service 
SCUH Sunshine Coast University Hospital 
SCHI Sunshine Coast Health Institute 
PPP Private Public Partnership 
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WISH LIST 
SUNSHINE COAST HEAL TH FOUNDATION 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 

2018 2017 
$ $ 

INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS Notes 
Revenue 

Revenue from Supplies and Services 2 2,724,010 2,959,572 

TOTAL INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 2,724,010 2,959,572 

EXPENSES FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 

Employee Expenses 3 616,291 551,083 
Carparking Expenses 4 120,707 186,545 
Fundraising Expenses 5 607,334 733,198 
Depreciation and Amortisation 6 57,494 123,186 
Other Expenses 7 157,662 218,187 

TOTAL EXPENSES FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 1,559,488 1,812,199 

OPERATING RESULT FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 
BEFORE DISTRIBUTION OF GRANTS 1,164,522 1,147,373 

Less: Distribution of Grants & Fundraising Disbursements 8 (743,012) (1,484,987) 

OPERATING RESULT FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 
AFTER DISTRIBUTION OF GRANTS 421,510 (337,614) 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

Increase in asset revaluation surplus 9 50,000 

TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 50,000 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 471,510 (337,614) 

The accompanying notes form part of these statements 
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CURRENT ASSETS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Receivables 
Inventories 
Other Current Assets 
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

NON CURRENT ASSETS 

Property, Plant & Equipment 

TOT AL ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Payables 
Accrued Employee Benefits 
Other Current Liabilities 
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

NET ASSETS 

EQUITY 

Accumulated Surplus 
Asset Revaluation 

TOT AL EQUITY 

WISH LIST 
SUNSHINE COAST HEALTH FOUNDATION 

BALANCE SHEET 
AS AT 30 JUNE 2018 

Notes 

10 
11 
12 
13 

14 

15 
16 
17 

2018 
$ 

1,963,504 
435,576 

6,165 
1,617 

2,406,862 

2,328,973 

4,735,835 

387,358 
67,246 

992,411 
1,447,015 

1,447,015 

3,288,820 

3,207,138 
81,682 

3,288,820 

The accompanying notes form part of these statements 

2017 
$ 

1,765,101 
89,511 
6,150 

44,226 
1,904,988 

2,217,695 

4,122,683 

854,615 
69,844 

462,596 
1,387,055 

1,387,055 

2,735,628 

2,735,628 

2,735,628 
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Balance as at 1 July 
Operating result from 
continuing operations 

Increase in asset 
revaluation surplus 

Balance as at 30 June 

WISH LIST 
SUNSHINE COAST HEALTH FOUNDATION 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 

Accumulated Surplus Asset Revaluation Contributed Equity 
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 

2,735,628 3,073,242 

421,510 (337,614) 

50,000 81,682 

3,207,138 2,735,628 81,682 

The accompanying notes form part of these statements 

Total 
2018 2017 

2,735,628 3,073,242 

421,510 (337,614) 

131,682 

3,288,820 2,735,628 
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WISH LIST 
SUNSHINE COAST HEALTH FOUNDATION 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 

2018 2017 
$ $ 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Notes 

Inflows: 
Cash receipts from supplies and services 2,420,539 2,955,820 

Outflows: 
Employee Expenses (618,889) (536,563) 
Carparking Expenses 4 (120,707) (186,545) 
Fundraising Expenses (544,776) (842,318) 
Distribution of Grants & Fundraising Disbursements 8 (743,012) (1,484,987) 
All Other Expenses 7 (157,662) (218, 187) 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 18 235,493 (312,780) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Outflows: 
Payments for property, plant and equipment 14 (37,090) (109,785) 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (37,090) (109,785) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 

Net Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 198,403 (422,565) 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at beginning of financial year 1,765, 101 2,187,666 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year 10 1,963,504 1,765,101 

The accompanying notes form part of these statements 
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WISHLIST 
SUNSHINE COAST HEALTH FOUNDATION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 30 JUNE 2018 

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT PREPARATION 

1.1 General Information and Objectives 

These financial statements cover the Sunshine Coast Health Foundation known as Wishlist. 

The Sunshine Coast Health Foundation (the Foundation or Wishlist) was established 23 January 1998 under the Hospitals Foundations Act (1982) and is 
a statutory body. It is a community based not for profit charity committed to providing equipment, training, support programs and research funding to the 
Sunshine Coast Hospital and Health Services district (SCHHS) which incorporates Nambour, Caloundra, Maleny, Gympie public hospitals and the new 
Sunshine Coast University Hospital (SCUH). 

The office and principal place of business is: 
Sunshine Coast University Hospital 
Doherty Street 
BIRTINYA QLD, 4575 

The postal address is: 
PO Box 5340 
SUNSHINE COAST MC QLD 4560 

1.2 Compliance with Prescribed Requirements 

Wish list has prepared these financial statements in compliance with the Financial Accountability Act 2009; the Financial and Performance Management 
Standard 2009; the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012; and Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations of the 
Australian Accounting Standards Board. 

Wishlist is a not-for-profit entity and these general purpose financial statements are prepared in compliance with the requirements of Australian 
Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements and Interpretations applicable to not-for-profit entities. The financial statements are prepared 
on an accrual basis (with the exception of the Statement of Cash Flows which is prepared on a cash basis). 

New accounting standards early adopted and/or applied for the first time in these financial statements are outlined in Note 1.21. 

1.3 Presentation Matters 

Currency and Roundin~ 
Amounts included in the financial statements are in Australian dollars and rounded to the nearest dollar. 
Comparatives 
Comparative information reflects the audited 2016-17 financial statements. No amounts were restated for a prior period. 

Current/Non-Current Classification 
Assets are classified as 'current' where their carrying amount is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date. Liabilities are classified 
as 'current' when they are due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date, or the Foundation does not have an unconditional right to defer 
settlement to beyond 12 months after the reporting date. 

All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current. 

1.4 Authorisation of Financial Statements for Issue 

The financial statements are authorised for issue by the Chair and Member of the Finance Audit and Risk Management Committee at the date of signing 
the Management Certificate. 

1.5 Basis of Measurement 

Historical cost is used as the measurement basis in this financial report except for the following: 
- Land, buildings, infrastructure, major plant and equipment, heritage and cultural assets and investment property which are 

measured at fair value; 
- Provisions expected to be settled 12 or more months after reporting date which are measured at their present value; and 
- Inventories which are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 
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WISHLIST 
SUNSHINE COAST HEALTH FOUNDATION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 30 JUNE 2018 

Historical Cost 
Under historical cost, assets are recorded at the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the consideration given to acquire assets at 
the time of their acquisition. Liabilities are recorded at the amount of proceeds received in exchange for the obligation or at the amounts of cash or cash 
equivalents expected to be paid to satisfy the liability in the normal course of business. 

Fair Value 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly derived from observable inputs or 
estimated using another valuation technique. Fair value is determined using one of the following three approaches: 

- The market approach uses prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving identical or 
comparable (i.e. similar) assets, liabilities or a group of assets and liabilities, such as a business. 

- The cost approach reflects the amount that would be required currently to replace the service capacity of an asset. This 
method includes the currenUdepreciated replacement cost methodology). 

- The income approach converts multiple future cash flows amounts to a single current (i.e. discounted) amount. When the 
income approach is used, the fair value measurement reflects current market expectations about those future amounts. 

Where fair value is used, the fair value approach is disclosed. 

Present Value 
Present value represents the present discounted value of the future net cash inflows that the item is expected to generate (in respect of assets) or the 
present discounted value of the future net cash outflows expected to settle (in respect of liabilities) in the normal course of business. 

Net Realisable Value 
Net realisable value represents the amount of cash or cash equivalents that could currently be obtained by selling an asset in an orderly disposal. 

1.6 The Reporting Entity 

The financial statements include all income, expenses, assets, liabilities and equity of Wish list. There are no controlled entities. 

1.7 Grants and Contributions 

Grants, contributions and donations are non-reciprocal in nature so do not require any goods or services to be provided in return. Corresponding revenue 
is recognised in the year in which Wishlist obtains control over the granUcontribution/donation (control is generally obtained at the time of receipt). 

1.8 Employee Expenses 

Employer superannuation contributions, annual leave levies and long service leave levies are regarded as employee benefits. 
Wages, Salaries 
Wages and salaries due but unpaid at reporting date are recognised in the Balance Sheet at the current salary rates. As the Foundation expects such 
liabilities to be wholly settled within 12 months of reporting date, the liabilities are recognised at undiscounted amounts. 

Annual Leave 
Provision is made for the Foundations liability for employee annual leave arising from services by employees to balance date. 
Sick Leave 
Prior history indicates that on average, sick leave taken each reporting period is less than the entitlement accrued. This is expected to continue in future 
periods. Accordingly, it is unlikely that existing accumulated entitlements will be used by employees and no liability for unused sick leave entitlements is 
recognised. As sick leave is non-vesting, an expense is recognised for this leave as it is taken. 

Long Service Leave 
Provision for long service leave is initially based on the entitlements as specified in the National Employment Standards and the Industrial Relations Act 
1999 (Qld). The entitlement is 8.6667 weeks long service leave after completion of 10 years continuous service with the Foundation. 
In accordance with AASB 119, a pro-rata entitlement is calculated for all employees in accordance with their years of service with the Foundation. The pro· 
rata years of service calculation is then adjusted by way of a probability assessment to reach quantification of the Foundation's long service leave 
provision. The probability assessment (percentage) of each employee reaching their 10 year service mark, is based on their years of service with the 
Foundation which is based on prior organisational experience. 

Superannuation 
Employer superannuation contributions are paid to superannuation funds as nominated by employees. Contributions are expensed in the period in which 
they are paid or payable. 
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WISHLIST 
SUNSHINE COAST HEALTH FOUNDATION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 30 JUNE 2018 

Workers' Compensation Premiums 
Wishlist pays premiums to WorkCover Queensland in respect of its obligations for employee compensation. Workers' compensation insurance is a 
consequence of employing employees, but is not counted in an employee's total remuneration package. It is not employee benefits and is recognised 
separately as employee related expenses. 

1.9 Cash and Cash Equivalent 

For the purposes of the Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Cash Flows, cash assets include all cash and cheques receipted but not banked 
at 30 June as well as deposits at call with financial institutions. 

1.10 Receivables 

Trade debtors are recognised at the amounts due at the time of sale or service delivery, i.e. the agreed purchase/contract price. Settlement of these 
amounts is required within 30 days from invoice date. 

Other debtors generally arise from transactions outside the usual operating activities of Wishlist and are recognised at their assessed values. Terms are 
a maximum of three months, no interest is charged and no security is obtained. 

The collectability of receivables is assessed periodically with provision being made for impairment. All known bad debts were written-off as at 30 June. 
Increases in the allowance for impairment are based on loss events that have occurred. 

1.11 Inventories 

Inventories held for sale are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 
Cost is assigned on a weighted average basis and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their existing condition, 
except for training costs which are expensed as incurred. 

Net realisable value is determined on the basis of the department's normal selling pattern. 
Expenses associated with marketing, selling and distribution are deducted to determine net realisable value. 

1.12 Property Plant and Equipment 

Recognition Thresholds 
Items of property, plant and equipment with a historical cost or other value equal to or exceeding the following thresholds in 
the year of acquisition are reported as Property, Plant and Equipment: 

Buildings 
Infrastructure 
Land 
Major Plant and Equipment 
Plant and Equipment 
Other 

Items with a lesser value are expensed in the year of acquisition. 
Land improvements undertaken by Wishlist are included in the building class. 

$10,000 
$10,000 

$1 
$5,000 
$2,000 
$5,000 

Expenditure is only added to an asset's carrying amount if it increases the service potential or useful life of the existing asset. Maintenance expenditure 
that merely restores original service potential (lost through ordinary wear and tear) is expensed. 

Cost of Acquisition 
Historical cost is used for the initial recording of all property, plant and equipment acquisitions. Historical cost is determined as the value given as 
consideration plus costs incidental to the acquisition, including all other costs incurred in getting the assets ready for use, including architects' fees and 
engineering design fees. 

1.13 Measurement using Fair Value 

Land, buildings, infrastructure, major plant and equipment and heritage and cultural assets are measured at fair value as required by Queensland 
Treasury's Non-Current Asset Policies for the Queensland Public Sector. These assets are reported at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the 
date of valuation, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses where applicable. 
The fair value of freehold land and buildings (Reed Charity House - Nambour) is determined at least every 3 years based on valuation by an independent 
valuer. At the end of each intervening period, the Board review the independent valuation and, when appropriate, update the fair value measurement to 
reflect current market conditions using a range of valuation techniques including recent observable market data. 

The cost of items acquired during the financial year has been judged by management of Wishlist to materially represent their fair value at the end of the 
reporting period. 
Plant and Equipment, (that is not classified as major plant and equipment) is measured at cost in accordance with Non-Current Asset Policies. The 
carrying amounts of such plant and equipment at cost should not materially differ from their fair value. 
Property, plant and equipment classes measured at fair value (refer above) are revalued at least once every five years with interim valuations, using 
appropriate indices, being otherwise performed on an annual basis where there has been a material variation in the index. 
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WISH LIST 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 30 JUNE 2018 

Accounting for Changes in Fair Value 
Any revaluation increment arising on the revaluation of an asset is credited to the asset revaluation surplus of the appropriate asset class, except to the 
extent it reverses a revaluation decrement for the class previously recognised as an expense. A decrease in the carrying amount on revaluation is 
charged as an expense, to the extent it exceeds the balance, if any, in the revaluation surplus relating to that asset class. 

For assets revalued using a cost valuation approach (e.g. current/depreciated replacement cost) - accumulated depreciation is adjusted to equal the 
difference between the gross amount and carrying amount, after taking into account accumulated impairment losses. This is generally referred to as the 
'gross method'. 

For assets revalued using a market or income-based valuation approach - accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses are eliminated 
against the gross amount of the asset prior to restating for the revaluation. This is generally referred to as the 'net method'. 

1.14 Depreciation Expense 

Land is not depreciated as it has an unlimited useful life. 

Property, plant and equipment is depreciated on a diminishing value method so as to allocate the net cost or revalued amount of each asset, less its 
estimated residual value, progressively over its estimated useful life to the Foundation. The car park equipment is depreciated using the straight line 
basis. 

Any expenditure that increases the originally assessed capacity or service potential of an asset is capitalised and the new depreciable amount is 
depreciated over the remaining useful life of the asset to the Foundation. 

The depreciable amount of the improvements to or on leasehold land is allocated progressively over the estimated useful lives of the improvements. 

Plant and Equipment subject to a finance lease is amortised on a diminishing value method over the term of the lease, or, where it is likely that the 
Foundation will obtain ownership of the asset, the expected useful life of the asset to the Foundation. 

For each class of depreciable asset the following depreciation rates are used: 

Class 

Buildings & Skybridge at Reed Charity 
Plant and Equipment: 

- Car Park Equipment 
- Office Equipment 
- Motor Vehicles 
- Other 

Furniture and Effects 

1.15 Payables & Distribution of grants 

Rate% 

4 

6.66 
20 
25 
20 
20 

Prior to 1 July 2017, trade creditors were recognised upon the raising of purchase orders for all goods and services ordered and are measured at the 
nominal amount i.e. agreed purchased/contract price, gross of applicable trade and other discounts. Amounts owing are unsecured. The expectation is 
that of total Trade Creditors $337,467 (2017: $797,900), $219,060 related to Grants Distributions and approximately $160,467 of this will be payable within 
12 months as per the funding application conditions. Note that certain research grants require specific criteria for the recipient to meet before present 
obligation is recognised. The balance of Trade Creditors $118,407 (2017: $44, 192) related to Operational Fund raising/Event expenses and are payable 
within 30 days. Refer also Note 8 and Note 19. As of 1 July 2017, trade creditors are recognised upon the raising of invoices for all goods and services. 

1.16 Provisions 

Provisions are recorded when the Foundation has a present obligation, either legal or constructive as a result of a past event. They are recognised at the 
amount expected at reporting date for which the obligation will be settled in a future period. Where the settlement of the obligation is expected after 12 or 
more months, the obligation is discounted to the present value using an appropriate discount rate. The amounts recognised as provisions in relation to 
the dismantling and removal of assets and the restoration of land which the assets have been located, have been included in the cost of the assets. 

1.17 Financial Instrument Categories 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position when the Foundation becomes party to the contractual 
provisions of the financial instruments. The department has the following categories of financial assets and financial liabilities: 
- Cash and cash equivalents - held at fair value through profit or loss 
- Receivables - held at amortised cost 
- Held to maturity investments - held at amortised cost 
- Payables - held at amortised cost 
- Borrowings - held at amortised cost. 

The Foundation does not enter into transactions for speculative purposes, nor for hedging. Apart from cash and cash equivalents, the Foundation holds 
no financial assets classified at fair value through profit or loss. 
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WISHLIST 
SUNSHINE COAST HEALTH FOUNDATION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 30 JUNE 2018 

1.18 Insurance 

The Foundation's non-current physical assets and other risks are insured through various insurers, premiums being paid on a risk assessment basis. 

1.19 Taxation 

Wishlist is endorsed by the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) as a Deductible Gift Recipient (a Health Promotion Charity) and is exempt from income tax 
under the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997. It is endorsed for GST (Goods and Services Tax) concessions under a New Tax System (Goods and 
SeNices Tax) Act 1999 and is exempted (subject to the thresholds) under the Fringe Benefits Tax Assessment Act 1986. 

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the ATO. 

Receivables and payables in the Balance Sheet are stated inclusive of GST. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included 
with other receivables or payables in the Balance Sheet. 

Cash Flows are presented net of GST. 

1.20 Key Accounting Estimates and Judgements 

The preparation of financial statements necessarily requires the determination and use of certain critical accounting estimates, assumptions, and 
management judgements that have the potential to cause a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial 
year. Such estimates, judgements and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in 
the period in which the estimate is revised and in future periods as relevant. 
The valuation of property, plant and equipment necessarily involves estimation uncertainty with the potential lo materially impact on the carrying amount of 
such assets in the next reporting period. 
Estimates and assumptions with the most significant effect on the financial statements are outlined in the following notes: 
Valuation of Property, Plant & Equipment - Notes 1.5, 1.13 and Note 14; 
Provisions - Note 1.16 and Note 17; 
Contingencies - Note 20; and 
Depreciation and Amortisation - Note 1.14 and Note 6. 

1.21 New and Revised Accounting Standards 

The Foundation did not voluntarily change any of its accounting policies during 2017-2018. The Foundation considers the relevance of all new and 
amended standards and interpretations that apply. At the date of authorisation of the financial report, significant impacts of new or amended Australian 
accounting standards with future commencement dates have been considered. 
AASSB 124 Related Party Disclosures now requires note disclosures about key management personnel (KMP) remuneration expenses and other related 
party transactions, and does not impact on financial statement line items. As Queensland Treasury already required this disclosure, AASB 124 itself had 
minimal impact on the Foundations KMP disclosures. 

There was no early adoption of Accounting Standards, Interpretations or Pronouncements in the 2017-18 financial year. 
There were no occurrences of voluntary changes in accounting policies during the 2017-18 financial year. 

1.22 Intangibles and Amortised Expense 

Intangible assets with a cost or other value equal to or greater than $100,000 are recognised in the financial statements. Items with a lesser value are 
expensed. Each intangible asset, less any anticipated residual value, is amortised over its estimated useful life to the Foundation. The residual value is 
zero for all the Foundations intangible assets. 
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SUNSHINE COAST HEALTH FOUNDATION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 30 JUNE 2018 

Revenue recognised in Statement of Comprehensive Income 
Note 2 - Supplies and Services 
Car Parking Revenue Nambour Hospital 
Fundraising Activities & Events Revenue 
Sponsorships & Grant Revenue 
Income from Other Activities 
Interest Income 

Note 3 - Employee Expenses 
a) Employee benefits 
Wages and Salaries 
Annual Leave Accrual 
Employer Superannuation Contributions 
Long Service Leave Accrual 
WorkCover 
Other Employee Expenses 

2018 
$ 

458,528 
1,715,037 

500,706 
17,404 
32,335 

2,724,010 

512,390 
107 

19,477 
(1,450) 

3,798 
81,969 

616,291 

2017 
$ 

1,137,051 
1,647,262 

119,750 
214 

55,295 
2,959,572 

449,371 
10,926 
24,185 

3,251 
3,356 

59,994 
551,083 

Number of employees as at 30 June, including both full-lime and part-time employees, measured on a full-lime equivalent basis is: 

9.5 9.1 

b) Key Executive Management Personnel (KMP) Disclosures 

The following details for key executive management personnel include those positions that had authority and responsibility for planning, directing and 
controlling the activities of the Foundation during the 2017-18 year. 
Wishlist is governed by a voluntary Board which is responsible for the overall strategic direction of the organisation, overseeing its operations and 
establishing policies and procedures. Directors are appointed by the Governor in Council. 
No Board members received or were entitled to receive any fees or disbursements during the year. 

The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) is responsible for the efficient, effective and economic administration of the Foundation. The role and remuneration 
package is in accordance with an employment contract. The current CEO was appointed 12 March 2002 by the Board. 

The Financial Controller is responsible for the efficient and effective financial administration of the Foundation and is subject to an employment contract. 

c) Remuneration 

Remuneration policy for the Foundation's key executive management personnel is set by the Board. The remuneration and other terms of employment for 
the key executive management personnel are specified in employment contracts. No KMP remuneration packages provide for performance or bonus 
payments. 
The Foundation does not bear any cost of remuneration of the Minister. 

The remuneration package includes base salary, allowances and leave entitlements paid and provided for together with provision of a motor vehicle and 
an employee expense benefits card (EBC) up to the exempt amount of fringe benefits tax applicable to the benefit. Long term benefits include long service 
leave accrued. 

For the year ended 30 June 2018, the CEO's remuneration package included a salary of $115,713, 9.5% superannuation contribution and motor vehicle & 
EBC benefits up to the FBT exempt amount of $27,529. (2017: Salary of $112,270, 9.5% superannuation contribution and motor vehicle & EBC benefits 
up to the FBT exempt amount of $31, 177). Accrued long service leave amounted to $19,755 (2017: $17,819). There were no performance bonuses paid 
or payable. There was no long service leave taken this year nor last year. 

Note 4 - Car parking Expenses 
Management Fees 
Operating Expenses 
Incentive fees 
Repairs and Maintenance 
Provision for Replacement, Insurance 

2018 
$ 

24,880 
56,193 

2,436 
37,198 

120,707 

2017 
$ 

26,479 
83,359 

7,572 
69,135 

186,545 

The Queensland Health Nambour Hospital car park is leased to the Foundation until 31 December 2020 (with options to extend) and is managed by Point 
Parking. 
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Note 5 - Fundraising Expenses 
GM5 for Kids 
Wishlist Coffee House at Gympie Hospital 
Reed Charity House 
Event Expenses 

Note 6 - Depreciation and Amortisation 
Buildings 
Reed Charity House - Furniture 
Office Equipment 
Carp ark 
Plant & Equipment 
Motor Vehicles 
Furniture, Fittings & Equipment - Parents Retreat SCUH 

Note 7 - Other Expenses 
Motor Vehicle costs 
Advertising and printing 
Computer costs including database costs 
All other costs 

2018 
$ 

176,882 
17,984 

412,468 
607,334 

6,657 
1,562 

25,932 
3,170 
3,025 

17,148 
57,494 

16,322 
48,712 
19,693 
72,935 

157,662 

2017 
$ 

4,042 
174,873 
36,000 

518,283 
733,198 

69,986 
8,322 
2,565 

25,411 
3,960 
4,034 
8,908 

123, 186 

15,004 
74,443 
18,074 

110,666 
218,187 

External audit fees relating to the 2017-18 year are estimated to be $8,000 (2017: $8,000). There were no non-audit services included in this amount. 

Note 8 - Distribution of Grants & Fundraising Disbursements 
Equipment 
Service Support 
Education 
Research 

125,733 250,223 
680,146 777,775 
67,996 55,908 

(130,863) 401,081 
743,012 1,484,987 

The foundation's actual commitment this year totalled $978,575, including $105,876 in research. Due to the cancellation of a $75,000 research grant from 
2015, the cancellation of a $72,874 equipment grant from 2017 and $92,172 in reversals of unspent funds relating to other previous commitments, the 
total spent is $743,012. The foundation spent $123,866 on research grants committed prior to 1July2017. These were recognised in the financial year 
that they were committed. Of the $105,876 in research committed in the 2018 financial year, the foundation spent $37,938. As per the changes in 
recognition of the research grant spend, the remaining $67,938 will be recognised as the milestones are met over the life of the research grant in years to 
come. 

Note 9 - Asset Revaluation Surplus 
Land Buildings Total 

Balance 1 Jul 2016 115,455 474,545 590,000 
Revaluation Increment 
Revaluation Decrement 

Ba~nce30June2017 115,455 474,545 590,000 

Balance 1 Jul 2017 115,455 474,545 590,000 
Revaluation Increment 20,000 30,000 50,000 
Revaluation Decrement 
Balance 30 June 2018 135,455 504,545 640,000 

The asset revaluation increase or decrease represents the net effect of upwards and downwards revaluations of assets at fair value for Reed Charity 
House (L&B) - 31 Hospital Road Nambour QLD. Refer also Note 14. 

Page 12 



WISHLIST 
SUNSHINE COAST HEALTH FOUNDATION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 30 JUNE 2018 

Note 10 - Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash on Hand 
Cash at Bank 
Cash on deposit 
GM5 Undeposited Funds * 

2018 
$ 

5,823 
934,084 
987,149 

36,448 
1,963,504 

2017 
$ 

3,810 
695,790 

1,065,501 

1,765, 101 

*These are funds deposited with Southern Cross Austereo (SCA) bank Accounts relating to the GM54K campaign. These will be received in Sept 2018 
after SCA have completed the audit and closed the campaign which ends 31August2018. 

Note 11 - Receivables 
Trade Debtors 
Other Debtors 

435,576 

435,576 
These are assessed periodically and no provision for impairment was considered necessary at 30 June 201 

Note 12 - Inventories 
Wishlist Coffee House - Stock 
Wishlist Coffee House - Consumables & Supplies 

5,589 
576 

6,165 
Of the Inventories on hand at 30 June 2018, $6, 165 {2017: $6, 150) are expected to be realised within 12 months. 

Note 13 - Other Current Assets 
Prepaid Expenses 
Deposits Paid 
Vouchers 

Note 14 - Property Plant & Equipment 
Land and Buildings 

Land (Reed Charity House) at Fair Value 
Buildings (Reed Charity House) at Fair Value 
Total Value of Land & Buildings (Reed Charity House) at Fair Value 
Building Improvements (Skybridge at RCH) at Cost 
Add Purchase costs 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 
Asset Revaluation 

Furniture 
At Cost 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 

Office Equipment 
At Cost 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 

Carpark Equipment 
At Cost 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 

Plant and Equipment 
At Cost 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 

Motor Vehicles 
At Cost 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 

Furniture, Fittings & Equipment - Parents Retreat SCUH 
At Cost 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 

Total 

1,367 
200 

50 
1,617 

450,000 
1,500,000 
1,950,000 

279,648 
22,013 

(361,330) 
81,682 

1,972,013 

117,546 
(90,917) 

26,629 

9,546 
(3,298} 

6 248 

388,452 
(154,675) 

233,777 

34,973 
(22,270) 

12,703 

32,315 
(23,239) 

9 076 

94,523 
(25,996) 

68,527 

2,328,973 

89,395 
116 

89,511 

5,596 
554 

6,150 

43,526 
200 
500 

44,226 

430,000 
1,470,000 
1,900,000 

279,648 
22,013 

(361,330) 

1 840 331 

117,546 
(84,259) 

33 287 

9,544 
(10,329) 

(785) 

359,489 
(128,743) 

230 746 

34,973 
(19, 100) 

15 873 

32,315 
(20,213) 

12102 

95,049 
(8,908) 
86 141 

2,217,695 

Land and Buildings include Reed Charity House situated at 31 Hospital Road, Nambour. Reed Charity House was donated by the Reed Charity 
Foundation to Wishlist on 21 February 2009. The 20 room accommodation facility was leased to The Australian Red Cross Society until May 2018 when 
Wishlist assumed direct management of the accommodation facility. The property was valued by Herron Todd White on 17 July 2018 (for the fair value as 
at 30 June 2018) at a current market value of $1,950,000. The property was previously valued by Herron Todd White on 3 June 2015 at a market value of 
$1,900,000. The building was depreciated at a rate of 4% from 1 July 2012. No building depreciation was expensed in 2017/18. 
It was decided by the FARM Committee that the fair value of Reed House to equal the valuation of $1,950,000 (plus the stamp duty and legal costs of 
$22,103) 
During the 2011-12 year $311,000 fundraising income was directed to the construction of the Wishlist Skybridge, linking the Reed Charity House to the 
Nambour Hospital campus. Funds for this project were donated by the community and local Rotary Clubs. 
Note: The Skybridge was included in the valuation of $1,950,000. 
Wishlist had fitted out the family room and parents retreat at SCUH for $95,000 in the 16/17 year, from proceeds raised from the Wishlist Spring Carnival. 
The SCH HS have been unable to clarify whether this was donated and accordinqly remains an asset of Wish list. 

Page 13 



WISH LIST 
SUNSHINE COAST HEALTH FOUNDATION 
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Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation Expense Reconciliation 

Land Buildings Other - Furniture Office Equipment Car Park Plant& Motor FFE Parents Total 
Buildings Equipment Equipment Vehicles Retreat 

2017 

Carrying Amount at 1 July 2016 430,000 1,458,304 22,013 41,608 4,143 239,060 19,833 16, 135 2,231,096 

Additions 12,409 17,097 95,049 124,555 

Disposals 14,770 14,770 

Revaluation lncrement/(Decrement) 

Depreciation I Amortisation 69,986 8,322 2,565 25,411 3,960 4,034 8,908 123,186 
Carrying Amount at 30 June 2017 430,000 1,388,318 22,013 33,286 - 783 230,746 15,873 12,101 86,141 2,217,695 

2018 

Carrying Amount at 1 July 2017 430,000 1,388,318 22,013 33,286 - 783 230,746 15,873 12,101 86,141 2,217,695 

Additions 28,963 28,963 

Disposals (8,593) 466 8,127 

Revaluation lncrement/(Decrement) 20,000 30,000 50,000 

Depreciation I Amortisation 6,657 1,562 25,932 3,170 3,025 17,148 57,494 

Revaluation Reserve 81,682 81,682 
Carrying Amount at 30 June 2018 450,000 1,500,000 22,013 26,629 6,248 233,777 12,703 9,076 68,527 2,328,973 
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NOTE 15 - Payables 
Trade Creditors & Grant Distributions 
Sundry Creditors 
BAS Payable 
Car Park Charge Cards 
Superannuation Payable 

NOTE 16 - Accrued Employee Benefits 
Wages outstanding 
Provision for Annual Leave 
Provision for Long Service Leave 
Time in Lieu Provision 

NOTE 17 - Other Current Liabilities 
Prepaid deposits 

Provision for building maintenance - RCH 

Provision for equipment replacement -
Carpark 

Accrued Expenses 
GM5 2018* 

2018 
$ 

337,441 
551 

28,491 

20,875 
387,358 

7,641 
28,820 
24,426 

6,359 
67,246 

155,555 

273,000 

36,220 

20,735 
506,901 

2017 
$ 

832,090 

4 
22,521 

854,615 

8,897 
35,072 
25,875 

69,844 

138,938 

273,000 

36,220 

14,438 

992,411 462,596 
*The 2018 GM54K campaign was run jointly with Southern Cross Austereo (SCA) with funds being received by both Wishlist and SCA. 
The campaign close-off is 31 August 2018, Wishlist will then transfer net proceeds to SCA who will then add this amount with the amount they received 
and transfer it back to Wishlist as a donation in September 2018. 

NOTE 18 - Reconciliation of Operating Surplus to Net Cash from Operating Activities 

Operating Surplus/(Deficit) 421,510 
Non-cash flows in operating profit: 

Depreciation and Amortisation expense 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 

(lncrease)/Decrease in Receivables 
(lncrease)/Decrease in Other Assets 
lncrease/(Decrease) in Payables 
lncrease/(Decrease) in Accrued Employee Benefits 
lncrease/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 
Net Cash from operating activities 

NOTE 19 - Commitments 

57,494 

(346,065) 
42,594 

(467,257) 
(2,598) 

529,815 
235,493 

(337,614) 

123, 186 

18,887 
(22,639) 

(132,253) 
14,520 
23,133 

(312,780) 

Wishlist do not have commitments for financial leases nor non-cancellable operating leases. There are no lease arrangements which create any 
restrictions on financing. No assets have been pledged as security for any liabilities. 

All contracted capital expenditure commitments have been recognised in the accounts. Other expenditure commitments including grants and fundraising 
disbursements have all been recognised in the accounts and are generally payable within 12 months. 

Payables and Distribution of Grants - refer Note 1.15 and Note 15 
Child Development Service: 
In 2015 Wishlist committed to reimburse the Sunshine Coast Hospital and Health Service for the cost of leasing 466m2 at 60 Wises Road, Maroochydore 
to accommodate the relocation of the Child Development Service from proceeds of Mix FM's Give Me 5 for Kids and Run Sunshine Coast. The 3 year 
agreement ended October 2017 with total lease costs committed of $366,305 for the 2015-2018 financial years. 

Wish list funded 1.8FTE in additional staffing to temporarily sustain the growth of the Service prior to its permanent relocation at the end of 2018. The 
$1.4m in funding concluded in November 2017 and total amount spent on staffing is $648,812. 

Reed Charity House 
An independent quantity surveyor report prepared by Graham Lukins Partnership Ply Ltd in June 2017 has forecast expect13d capital expenditure of 
$61,620 for the 2018-2019 year; $60,849 for 2019-2020 year and $54,901 for the 2020-2021 year. The capital expenditure will be funded from the 
$237,000 currently provided for in the Reed Charity House sinking fund provision - refer Note 17. 

NOTE 20 - Contingencies 
There were no known contingent assets nor liabilities as at 30 June 2018. 
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NOTE 21 - Financial Instruments 

(a) Categorisation of Financial Instruments 
Wish list has the following categories of financial assets and financial liabilities 

Financial Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables 
Total 

Financial Liabilities 
Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost 
Payables & Grant Distributions 
Total 

(b) Financial Risk Management 

Note 

10 
11 

15 

2018 
$ 

1,963,504 
435,576 

2,399,080 

387,358 
387,358 

Wish list activities expose it to a variety of financial risks - interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. 

2017 
$ 

1,765, 101 
89,511 

1,854,612 

854,615 
854,615 

Whilst there is no legislative requirement for the Foundation to undergo an internal audit, the Foundation's Finance, Audit & Risk Management Committee 
ensures it minimises the risk of an inadequate internal control framework that may result in possible fraud, irregularities or regulatory non-compliance by 
way of internal checklists and the review of specific finance related source documentation. The Foundation's Finance, Audit & Risk Management 
Committee is currently in the process of updating their internal audit related risk management procedures. The update will be completed in line with the 
Financial Management Practice Manual. 

The Sunshine Coast Hospital and Health Service Internal Audit programme included the Foundation early in the 2015-16 financial year as a one off 
review, requested by members of the Finance, Audit and Risk Management Committee. 
In November 2017, the foundation engaged the Sunshine Coast Health and Hospital Service to conduct a one off transactional review as requested by 
members of the Finance, Audit and Risk Management Committee to review financial controls and procedures. All recommendations made in the report 
were accepted by the Board. 

(c) Credit Risk Exposure 
Credit risk exposure refers to the situation where the Foundation may incur financial loss as a result of another party to a financial instrument failing to 
discharge their obligation. 
The maximum exposure to credit risk at balance date in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the gross carrying amount of those assets 
inclusive of any provisions for impairment. 

No collateral is held as security and no credit enhancements relate to financial assets held by the Foundation. 

Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. The Foundation minimises concentrations of 
credit risk in so far as its transactions are undertaken with a large number of customers predominantly on cash terms. 

At the reporting date, there were no significant concentrations of credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of 
each financial asset in the Statement of Financial Position. 

No financial assets have had their terms renegotiated so as to prevent them from being past due or impaired, and are stated at the carrying amounts as 
indicated. 

(d) Liquidity Risk 
Liquidity risk refers to the situation where the Foundation may encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled 
by delivering cash or another financial asset. 

The Foundation is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of its payables. 

The Foundation manages liquidity risks through the use of cash and deposits. This aims to reduce the exposure to liquidity risk by ensuring the 
Foundation has sufficient funds available to meet employee and supplier obligations as they fall due. This is achieved by ensuring minimum levels of cash 
are held within the accounts so as to match the expected duration of the various employee and supplier liabilities. 

The above financial liabilities held by the Foundation are generally payable in less than 12 months. This represents the contractual maturity of the financial 
liabilities, calculated based on cash flows relating to the repayment of outstanding amounts at balance date. 

(e) Market Risk 
The Foundation does not trade in foreign currency and is not exposed to commodity price changes. Its cash deposits are in interest bearing accounts. The 
Foundation does not undertake any hedging in relation to interest rate risk. 
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WISHLIST 
SUNSHINE COAST HEALTH FOUNDATION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 30 JUNE 2018 

(fl Interest rate sensitivity analysis 
The following interest rate sensitivity analysis depicts the outcome to profit and loss if interest rates were to change by +/- 1 % from the year-end rates 
applicable to the Foundation's financial assets and liabilities. With all other variables held constant, the Foundation would have a surplus/( deficit) and 
equity increase/(decrease) of $19,635 (2017: $17,651) This is predominantly attributable to the Foundation's exposure to interest rates on its cash 
deposits. 

Amount 
$ 

2018 
Cash and Cash Equivalent 1,963,504 

2017 
Cash and Cash Equivalent 1,765,101 

(g) Fair Value Measurement 

Surplus/Equity(+/- 1%) 
$ 

19,635 

17,651 

The Foundation does not recognise any financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value. The fair value of trade receivables and payables are recognised 
at the value of the original transaction. There are no provisions for impairment. 

NOTE 22 - Related Party Transactions 
The following Board members held office during the financial year: 

Peter Boyce (Chairperson) 
Kym Chamley (Deputy Chairperson) 
Cos Schuh 
Lisa Aitken 
Graham Wilkinson 
John Williams 
Trudy Fitzgerald 

Greg Fahey 
Jenny Madden 
Mike Kelly (stood down Dec 2017) 
Kevin Hegarty (resigned September 2017) 

No Board member directly or indirectly received or is due to receive remuneration from the Foundation or any related party in connection with the 
Management of the Foundation. 
Patricia Taylor fulfils the role of Board Secretary. 
Lisa Rowe is the Wishlist Chief Executive Officer. 
There were no known related party transactions with people/entities related to the Board or key management personnel. 

NOTE 23 - Events Occurring After Balance Date 
The Board are not aware of any significant events since the end of the reporting period that requires disclosure or adjustment to the financial results 
presented. 
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WISH LIST 
MANAGEMENT CERTIFICATE & DECLARATION 

SUNSHINE COAST HEALTH FOUNDATION 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared pursuant to s.62(1 )(a) of the Financial 
Accountability Act 2009 (the Act), section 43 of the Financial and Performance Management Standard 2009, 
the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and other prescribed requirements. In 
accordance with s.62(1 )(b) of the Act and s60.15(2) of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits 
Commission Regulation 2013, we certify that in our opinion: 

(a) the prescribed requirements for establishing and keeping the accounts have been complied with in all 
material respects; and 

(b) the financial statements have been drawn up to present a true and fair view, in accordance with 
prescribed accounting standards and the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012, of 
the transactions of Sunshine Coast Health Foundation for the financial year ended 30 June 2018 and of the 
financial position at the end of that year; and 

(c) these assertions are based on an appropriate system of internal controls and risk management 
processes being effective, in all material respects, with respect to financial reporting throughout the reporting 
period, and 

(d) there are reasonable grounds to believe the Sunshine Coast Health Foundation is able to pay all of its 
debts as and when they become due and payable. 

(/ 
c 

Cos Sc uh 
FINANCE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE MEMBER 
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AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION 

To the Board of Sunshine Coast Health Foundation 

This auditor's independence declaration has been provided pursuant to section 60-40 of the 
Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012. 

Independence Declaration 

As auditor for the audit of Sunshine Coast Health Foundation for the financial year ended 30 
June 2018, I declare to the best of my knowledge and belief, there has been: 

a} no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Australian 
Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 in relation to the audit; and 

b} no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the 
audit. 

ALLEN HERTEL, FCA 
Registered Company Auditor (No. 5977} 
c/- Focus Professional Group AH Pty Ltd, Chartered Accountants 
Level 6, 57 The Esplanade, CODON TREE QLD 4573 

Dated: 
rr :U August 2018 
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INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT 
To the Board of Sunshine Coast Health Foundation 

Report on the audit of the financial report 

Opinion 

I have audited the accompanying financial report of Sunshine Coast Health Foundation. 

In my opinion, the financial report: 

(a) gives a true and fair view of the entity's financial position as at 30 June 2018, and of its 
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended 

(b) complies, in all material respects, with the Financial Accountability Act 2009, the 
Financial and Performance Management Standard 2009, the Australian Charities and 
Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012, the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits 
Commission Regulation 2013 and Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced 
Disclosure Requirements. 

The financial report comprises the Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2018, the statement of 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the 
year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information, and certificate & declaration given by the Board. 

Basis for opinion 

I conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Financial Report section of my report. 

I am independent of the entity in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of 
the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and with the ethical 
requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of 
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial 
report in Australia. I have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the 
Code and the Auditor-Genera/ of Queensland Auditing Standards. 

Please note the Auditor-Genera/ Act 2009 promotes the independence of the 
Auditor-General and all authorised auditors. The Auditor-General is the auditor of all 
Queensland public sector entities and can only be removed by Parliament. 

The Auditor-General may conduct an audit in any way considered appropriate and is not 
subject to direction by any person about the way in which audit powers are to be exercised. 
The Auditor-General has for the purposes of conducting an audit, access to all documents 
and property and can report to Parliament matters which in the Auditor-General's opinion 
are significant. 
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I believe the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
my opinion. 

The Board's Responsibility for the financial report 

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair 
view in accordance with prescribed accounting requirements identified in the Financial 
Accountability Act 2009, the Financial and Performance Management Standard 2009, the 
Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012, the Australian Charities and 
Not-for-profits Commission Regulation 2013 and Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced 
Disclosure Requirements. The Board's responsibility also includes such internal control as 
the Board determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that 
gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. The Board is also responsible for assessing the entity's ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless it is intended to abolish the entity or to otherwise cease 
operations. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the audit of the financial report 

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a 
whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing 
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of this financial report. 

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, I exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. I also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the association's internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the entity. 
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• Conclude on the appropriateness of the entity's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity's 
ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I 
am required to draw attention in my auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor's 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the entity to cease to continue 
as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

communicate with the Board regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 

internal control that we identify during our audit. 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

I accordance with s40 of the Auditor-General Act 2009, for the year ended 30 June 2018: 

a) I received all the information and explanations I required. 

b) In my opinion, the prescribed requirements in relation to the establishment and 
keeping of accounts were complied with in all material respects. 

Please note the entity was exempt from being audited by Auditor-General for the 2016, 
2017 and 2018 financial years due to it being considered small and low risk. I understand 
this arrangement will expire and the Auditor-General intends to audit the entity for the 
2019 financial year. 

ALLEN HERTEL, FCA 
Registered Company Auditor {No. 5977) 
c/- Focus Professional Group AH Pty Ltd, Chartered Accountants 
Level 6, 57 The Esplanade, COTION TREE QLD 4573 

er 
Dated: J,( August 2018 
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Appendix 2 – Independent Auditors Report 
 



i-'' 2{f-August 2018 

The Board of Management 
Sunshine Coast Health Foundation (Wishlist) 
cf- Ms Lisa Rowe, CEO; Copy by Email: lisa.rowe@health.gld.gov.au 

Dear Board Members 

Focus Professional Group 
AH Ply Lid 
level 6, 57 The Esplanade 
PO Box 483 
Collon Tree Qld 4558 

I '. (07) 5479 2833 
f + !071 5479 01 I 1 
e ·'· mail@focuspg.com.au 
w ·> www.focuspg.com.au 

RE: .SUNSHINE COAST HEALTH FOUNDATION (Wishlist) -AUDIT- 30 JUNE 2018 

In accordance with our letter of engagement dated 11 May 2015, we are pleased to advise the 
audit for 30 June 2018 is complete and the general purpose financial statements have been 
audited. 

There were no issues of significance noted during the course of our normal audit examination, 
however we note: 

1) Transaction Review recommendations by SCHHS November 2017 be finalised; 
2) Event based GST budgeting & accounting procedures be improved/clarified & 

exceptions resolved; 
3) Creditor commitments/ Research grant expenditure & milestone process be thoroughly 

reviewed & implemented to ensure matching principle met; 
4) Future internal audit review of processes and controls (scheduled November 20l8); and 
5) Detailed EOM & EOY substantive/supporting workpapers be kept electronically and 

referenced back to the final MYOB file. 

Our audit is planned and conducted so as to enable us to express a professional opinion on the 
statutory Financial Statements. It is not intended to cover all aspects of the entity's internal 
controls and accounting systems and is limited to any matters arising from our normal au.di.t 
procedures. It is not designed, nor can it be expected to disclose, all defalcations or 
irregularities. Such matters might of course be revealed during the course of our work. If this 
were the case, the matters would be reported to you. 

We would also like to take this opportunity to express our appreciation to the staff for their 
assistance during the audit. 

If you have any queries In respect of the report please do not hesitate to contact our office. 

Llabllity limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation 

Focusing on ... 
+Business S!ruclure <>Retirement Village Consulting +Forensic Auditing + Monogemenl & Flnonclal Accounting ~ Taxallon Planning & Reporting 

+ Business Growlh + Corporale· Compliance + SelfMonoged Superonnuollon 

.. __ -~ KN'OWLEDGE _ l EXPERIENCE ~ - .. RESUJ .. TS "- _ 
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Appendix 3 – Compliance Checklist 
 

Summary of requirement Basis for requirement 
Annual  
report  

reference 

Letter of 
compliance 

• A letter of compliance from the accountable 
officer or statutory body to the relevant Minister/s 

ARRs — section 7 3 

Accessibility • Table of contents 

• Glossary 

ARRs — section 9.1 2 & 22 

• Public availability ARRs — section 9.2 2 

• Interpreter service statement Queensland Government 
Language Services Policy 

ARRs — section 9.3 

2 

•  Copyright notice Copyright Act 1968  

ARRs — section 9.4 

2 

• Information Licensing QGEA — Information Licensing 

ARRs — section 9.5 

2 

General 
information 

• Introductory Information ARRs — section 10.1 4 

• Agency role and main functions 

 

ARRs — section 10.2 6 

• Operating environment ARRs — section 10.3 6 

   Non-financial  
   performance 

• Government's objectives for the community ARRs — section 11.1 7-11 

• Other whole-of-government plans / specific 
initiatives 

ARRs — section 11.2 7-11 

• Agency objectives and performance indicators ARRs — section 11.3 7 

• Agency service areas and service standards ARRs — section 11.4  

Financial 
performance 

• Summary of financial performance ARRs — section 12.1 11-14 

Governance — 
management and 
structure 

• Organisational structure ARRs — section 13.1 15 

• Executive management ARRs — section 13.2 15-16 

• Government bodies (statutory bodies and other 
entities) 

ARRs — section 13.3  

• Public Sector Ethics Act 1994 Public Sector Ethics Act 1994 

ARRs — section 13.4 

18 

• Queensland public service values ARRs — section 13.5 4 

Governance — 
risk management 
and 
accountability 

• Risk management ARRs — section 14.1 18 

•  Audit committee ARRs — section 14.2 18 

•  Internal audit ARRs — section 14.3 20 
 

 

  



© Sunshine Coast Health Foundation 2018     
 

Compliance Checklist cont. 
 

Summary of requirement Basis for requirement 
Annual  
report  

reference 

  • External scrutiny ARRs — section 14.4 20 

• Information systems and recordkeeping ARRs — section 14.5 2 

Governance — 
human 
resources 

• Strategic workforce planning and performance ARRs — section 15.1 15 

• Early retirement, redundancy and retrenchment Directive No.11/12 Early 
Retirement, Redundancy and 
Retrenchment 

Directive No.16/16 Early 
Retirement, Redundancy and 
Retrenchment (from 20 May 
2016) 

ARRs — section 15.2 

18 

Open Data • Statement advising publication of information ARRs — section 16 2 

• Consultancies ARRs — section 33.1 20 

• Overseas travel ARRs — section 33.2 20 

• Queensland Language Services Policy ARRs — section 33.3 2 

Financial 
statements 

• Certification of financial statements FAA — section 62 

FPMS — sections 42, 43 and 50 

ARRs — section 17.1 

18 
Financial 

Statements 

• Independent Auditor's Report FAA — section 62  

FPMS — section 50  

ARRs — section 17.2 

19 
Financial  

Statements 
 
FAA  Financial Accountability Act 2009 

FPMS  Financial and Performance Management Standard 2009 
 
ARRs Annual report requirements for Queensland Government agencies 




